

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY  
Kirksville 63501

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
OF THE  
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 1

OPEN SESSION  
OF MEETING ON  
APRIL 5, 2025

The Board of Governors for Truman State University met on Saturday, April 5, 2025, at the University campus in Kirksville, Missouri. Philip J. Christofferson, Chair of the Board of Governors, called the open session to order at 1:00 p.m. in the Conference Room (3000) of the Student Union Building.

Six voting members participated in the meeting: Sarah Burkemper, Taylor W. Burks, Philip J. Christofferson, Jennifer Kopp Dameron, Nancy Gingrich, and William B. Lovegreen. Governors Burkemper, Burks, and Dameron participated via conference call. The seventh voting member position is vacant.

One non-voting member, Mike McClaskey, an out-of-state member, participated in the meeting. The second out-of-state member position and the Student Representative position are vacant.

Call to Order and Chair Report

Governor Christofferson called the meeting to order and welcomed all in attendance.

Minutes for Open Session of Previous Meeting

Governor Lovegreen moved for the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that the minutes for the open session of the previous meeting on February 8, 2025, be approved.

Governor Gingrich seconded the motion, which was carried by a unanimous vote of 6 to 0. Governor Christofferson declared the motion duly adopted.

President's Report

Susan L. Thomas, University President, shared a featured engagement report and provided an update on current items of interest. During her report, she shared budget and legislative updates at the state and federal levels. She commended Truman's Higher Learning Commission (HLC) Steering Team for their exceptional work in preparation for the recent HLC Open Pathway Comprehensive Evaluation Team Visit, and she highlighted the 2025 Special Olympics Missouri State Summer Games, which will be held on the Truman campus from May 30 to June 1. Dr. Thomas ended her report by reading an email she received from a freshman's father on the Truman experience, noting that Truman had been the perfect fit academically and personally for his son.

Advancement, Foundation Board, and Alumni Board Report

Charles Hunsaker, Associate Vice President for University Advancement; Calaneet Balas, President of the Foundation Board of Directors; and Lori Hart, President of the Alumni Association Board of Directors, shared updates from Advancement and their respective boards.

Academic Affairs and Student Services Committee Report

Governor Lovegreen, Chair of the Academic Affairs and Student Services Committee, reported on the meeting held on March 31.

Finance and Auditing Committee Report

Governor Burkemper, Chair of the Finance and Auditing Committee, reported on the meeting held on April 1.

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY  
Kirksville 63501

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
OF THE  
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 2

OPEN SESSION  
OF MEETING ON  
APRIL 5, 2025

Financial Report

Governor Burkemper presented the Financial Report, which included a review of education and general revenues and expenditures, auxiliary system revenues and expenditures, and Truman State University Foundation revenues and expenditures as of February 28, 2025, compared to February 29, 2024.

Budget and Capital Projects Committee Report

Governor Dameron, Chair of the Budget and Capital Projects Committee, reported on the meeting held on March 31.

Construction Projects Report

Governor Dameron provided an update on construction projects approved by the Board at previous meetings.

Contracts for Construction Projects and Equipment Purchases

Governor Dameron noted that the following single item of equipment, totaling \$25,000 to \$100,000, had been purchased since the last board meeting.

<u>Description</u>	<u>Cost</u>
Chevrolet Malibu (2)	\$52,588

Consent Agenda

Governor Gingrich moved for the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that the following consent agenda items be approved and attached to the minutes as exhibits:

- |          |  |
|----------|--|
| ITEM H.1 | Treasurers for Fiscal Year 2026  |
| ITEM H.2 | Equipment Purchase   |
| ITEM H.3 | 2025 Summer Roof Replacement and Masonry Repairs Project   |
| ITEM H.4 | Faculty Senate Bylaws  |
| ITEM H.5 | Amendments to Chapter 6 of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors Pertaining to Academic Affairs - Faculty |

Governor Lovegreen seconded the motion, which was carried by a unanimous vote of 6 to 0. Governor Christofferson declared the motion duly adopted, and the Secretary designated copies of the items as Exhibits A, B, C, D, and E.

Enrollment Fees

Governor Lovegreen moved for the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that the following enrollment fees for full-time students be approved, effective with the 2025 Fall Semester:

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY  
Kirksville 63501

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
OF THE  
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 3

OPEN SESSION  
OF MEETING ON  
APRIL 5, 2025

- 1) Undergraduate students who are enrolled in 12 or more, but less than 18, hours of academic credit for each semester:

Missouri Students	\$9,878 per academic year
Out-of-State Students	\$18,947 per academic year

- 2) The President is authorized to establish graduate pricing tiers that account for specialized and high-cost graduate programs and are competitive with other institutions. Such rates must be designed to include all the designated fees with a single cost per credit hour.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the designated fee for the Student Recreation Center included above be maintained at \$222 for each full-time equivalent student per academic year; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the designated fee for the Student Union included above be increased to \$330 for each full-time equivalent student per academic year; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following additional enrollment fees for students enrolled in 6 or more semester hours during the academic year be maintained and approved as follows:

- 1) A student activity fee of \$100 per academic year (\$50 per semester);
- 2) A student health fee of \$78 per academic year (\$39 per semester);
- 3) An athletic fee of \$116 per academic year (\$58 per semester);
- 4) An information/technology (itech) fee of \$34 per academic year (\$17 per semester); and
- 5) A sustainability fee of \$10 per academic year (\$5 per semester).

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that if the student body approves the proposed increases in the Athletic Fee to \$120 (\$60 per semester) and the Student Activity Fee to \$115 (\$57.50 per semester), these new rates will replace the corresponding rates above; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the freshman orientation fee remains at \$350 for freshman students during the fall semester and a corresponding fee for freshman students participating in comparable orientation programs during other semesters, with each freshman student to pay such an orientation fee only a single time; and

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY  
Kirksville 63501

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
OF THE  
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 4

OPEN SESSION  
OF MEETING ON  
APRIL 5, 2025

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President of the University is authorized to charge tuition and fees for 2025-26 as outlined in Table 4 of the attachment; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President of the University is authorized to establish summer school rates designed to enhance enrollment in such programs; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the enrollment fees for part-time students, interim sessions, study abroad, professional development, specialized graduate programs, online programs, and the other enrollment fees and miscellaneous charges not listed in this resolution be established by the President of the University, based on the above fees and charges, in accordance with Section 11.010 and 11.020 of the Code of Policies; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of the background information and rationale for this fee proposal be attached to the minutes as an exhibit.

Governor Gingrich seconded the motion, which was carried by a unanimous vote of 6 to 0. Governor Christofferson declared the motion duly adopted, and the Secretary designated a copy of the document as Exhibit F.

Agenda Items for Future Meetings

Governor Christofferson reviewed a list of projected agenda items for the regular meetings during the following year.

Dates for Future Meetings

Governor Lovegreen moved for the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that the next regular meeting of the Board of Governors be scheduled for Saturday, June 14, 2025, on the University campus in Kirksville, Missouri, beginning at 1:00 p.m., with the understanding that the Chair may alter the starting time and/or place for the meeting by giving due notice of such change; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that other regular meetings of the Board during the next year be tentatively scheduled for the following dates:

Saturday, August 2, 2025;  
Friday, October 17, 2025;  
Saturday, December 6, 2025;  
Saturday, February 7, 2026; and  
Saturday, April 11, 2026.

TRUMAN STATE UNIVERSITY  
Kirksville 63501

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
OF THE  
BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Page 5

OPEN SESSION  
OF MEETING ON  
APRIL 5, 2025

Governor Gingrich seconded the motion, which was carried by a unanimous vote of 6 to 0. Governor Christofferson declared the motion duly adopted.

Agenda Items for Closed Session

Governor Burkemper moved for the adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED that this meeting be continued in closed session, with closed records and closed votes as permitted by law, for consideration of the following items as authorized by Section 610.021, Revised Statutes of Missouri:

1. Approval of minutes for the closed session of the last meeting under Subsection 14 of the statute for "Records which are protected from disclosure by law;"
2. Individual personnel actions under Subsection 3 of the statute for "Hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting of particular employees by a public governmental body when personal information about the employee is discussed or recorded;" and
3. Confidential communications with the General Counsel, as defined in Subsection 1 of the statute.

Governor Lovegreen seconded the motion, which was carried by a unanimous vote of 6 to 0, with Governors Burkemper, Burks, Christofferson, Dameron, Gingrich, and Lovegreen voting Aye. Governor Christofferson declared the motion duly adopted.

The closed session of the meeting began shortly after 2:30 p.m.

The open session of the meeting resumed shortly after 4:15 p.m.

With no further business, Governor Lovegreen moved that the meeting be adjourned. Governor Gingrich seconded the motion, which was carried by a unanimous vote of 6 to 0. Governor Christofferson declared the motion duly adopted, and the meeting was adjourned shortly after 4:20 p.m.

---

Jennifer Kopp Dameron  
Secretary of the Board of Governors

I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes were  
approved by the Board of Governors on the  
14<sup>th</sup> day of June, 2025.



---

Philip J. Christofferson  
Chair of the Board of Governors

## ITEM H.1 Treasurers for Fiscal Year 2026

### DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND

University treasurers are appointed on an annual basis. These individuals are responsible for administering institutional funds.

### RECOMMENDED ACTION

BE IT RESOLVED that the following persons be appointed treasurers for Fiscal Year 2026:

Michael A. Garzanelli	Treasurer
David R. Rector	Deputy Treasurer
Cheryl Cragg	Assistant Treasurer

Moved by \_\_\_\_\_  
Seconded by \_\_\_\_\_

	Aye	Nay
Vote: Burkemper	_____	_____
Burks	_____	_____
Christofferson	_____	_____
Dameron	_____	_____
Gingrich	_____	_____
Lovegreen	_____	_____

**ITEM H.2  
Equipment Purchase****DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND**

Truman's backhoe loader was purchased in 1998. As a result of the unit's age, maintenance costs have become significant, and repair times are impacting campus projects. To continue to provide safe and reliable equipment to the University's Physical Plant employees, a request for proposal (RFP) was published for a replacement backhoe loader. Fifteen different regional dealerships were invited to respond. The RFP was also placed on the University's website and displayed on the statewide procurement bulletin, MissouriBuys. The University received four separate proposals. A selection committee comprised of the Physical Plant Director, the Assistant Physical Plant Director, and the University's two primary equipment operators evaluated the proposals based on required specifications, reliability, warranty, and cost. The selection committee unanimously recommended the John Deere 320P-tier backhoe loader submitted by Martin Equipment of Palmyra, Missouri. The cost, including trade-in, is \$105,000.

The Uninterruptable Power Supply (UPS) units located in the data center provide conditioned power to all equipment in the data center so that the power stays at an even and reliable level, as well as provide emergency battery backup power for just under two hours in the event of a power outage. These units were installed in 2009 and are now approximately 16 years old. Due to the discontinuation of some parts for this equipment, it cannot be expanded to accommodate a longer hold time. The proposed units include newer battery technology and the capability to expand the system to support a longer hold time in the event of an outage. The proposed equipment is available on a state-wide contract. The funding for this item is available in the Information Technology Services capital expenditures and operations budgets.

The Ellucian Banner System is the University's core enterprise resource management system, and as such, supports the finance, budget, financial aid, student accounts, human resource, registration, advising, degree audit, and academic records systems used by the University. The current Banner server will be seven years old in November and needs to be upgraded to continue to receive vendor support and maintenance, as well as provide a reliable infrastructure for these systems. The proposed equipment is available on a state-wide contract. The funding for this item is available in the Information Technology Services capital expenditures and operations budgets.

**RECOMMENDED ACTION**

BE IT RESOLVED that the purchase of the following items of equipment be approved:

<u>Item Name</u>	<u>Project Budget</u>
John Deere 320P-tier Backhoe Loader	\$105,000
Uninterruptable Power Supply (UPS) Upgrade	\$121,000
Banner Server Upgrade	\$151,000

April 5, 2025

Moved by \_\_\_\_\_  
Seconded by \_\_\_\_\_

Vote:

Burkemper  
Burks  
Christofferson  
Dameron  
Gingrich  
Lovegreen

Aye

Nay

_____	_____
_____	_____
_____	_____
_____	_____
_____	_____
_____	_____



## ITEM H.3

### 2025 Summer Roof Replacement and Masonry Repairs Project

#### DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND

Several major buildings, including Magruder Hall, McClain Hall, Missouri Hall, and Pickler Memorial Library need sections of roofs replaced. The roofs are 20 years old and have deteriorated. Each of these buildings has sections of roofing which vary in age due to renovations and additions. This project would address these issues as well as masonry repairs, and work would occur starting in May 2025.

Bid specifications were developed by Building Resource Studio, LLP, of St. Louis, and the project was advertised in several general circulation newspapers and communicated via email to reach interested contractors.

Four contractors attended a pre-bid conference on March 11. Bids for the project opened on March 18. Three general contractors submitted proposals, and the low bids were from Watkins Roofing, of Columbia, Missouri, for work at Magruder Hall and McClain Hall and from Weathercraft Inc., of Jefferson City, Missouri, for work at Missouri Hall, Pickler Memorial Library, and masonry repairs. The total project budget includes architectural design fees, advertising, general contractor costs, and contingency.

#### RECOMMENDED ACTION

BE IT RESOLVED that the description and budgeted amount for the following construction project be approved:

<u>Project Name</u>	<u>Project Budget</u>
2025 Summer Roof Replacement and Masonry Repair Project	\$860,000

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President of the University, or her designee, be authorized to accept the lowest and best bid for the project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of the project description, as reviewed at the meeting, be attached to the minutes as an exhibit.

Moved by \_\_\_\_\_  
Seconded by \_\_\_\_\_

Vote:

Burkemper  
Burks  
Christofferson  
Dameron  
Gingrich  
Lovegreen

Aye

Nay

_____	_____
_____	_____
_____	_____
_____	_____
_____	_____

April 5, 2025

**ITEM H.4**  
**Faculty Senate Bylaws**

**DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND**

The bylaws of the Faculty Senate need to be revised to accommodate the recent reorganization in Academic Affairs. The attached version includes the revisions approved at the November 21, 2024, Faculty Senate meeting and approved in an online election of eligible voters held February 10-24, 2025. The bylaws passed with a vote of 120 for, 32 against, and 5 abstentions. There was no formal quorum expectation; however, more than half of the 250 eligible voters participated, which included teaching faculty plus faculty-status librarians. Section 6.020. of the Code of Policies calls for the approval of such amendments by the Board of Governors.

**RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION**

BE IT RESOLVED that the amendments to the Bylaws of the Faculty Senate, as set out in the attached document, approved by the Faculty Senate on November 21, 2024, and as approved in an online election of eligible voters held February 10-24, 2025; be now approved and accepted, effective immediately, and that they be incorporated into the Bylaws of the Faculty Senate of Truman State University; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of the document be attached to and made a part of the minutes for this meeting.

Moved by \_\_\_\_\_  
Seconded by \_\_\_\_\_

		Aye	Nay
Vote:	Burkemper	_____	_____
	Burks	_____	_____
	Christofferson	_____	_____
	Dameron	_____	_____
	Gingrich	_____	_____
	Lovegreen	_____	_____

**ATTACHMENTS**

Approved Revisions to Faculty Senate Bylaws  
Faculty Senate Resolution

## **BYLAWS – revised due to reorganization, effective date October 2008**

### **I. Meetings**

A. The Faculty Senate shall meet at least once per month during the academic year.

B. Special meetings of Faculty Senate may be called upon:

1. the request of the University President or the Provost;
2. the request of the President of the Senate, or in his/her<sup>their</sup> absence from the University campus, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate;
3. The petition of a majority of the membership of Faculty Senate;
4. The petition of at least 10 percent of the number of persons eligible to vote on amendments;

C. The Faculty Senate may call a meeting of the whole faculty by rank, tenure status, or as an open meeting by petition of one-quarter of the faculty in the respective group wishing to call a meeting.

D. Minutes of all meetings called by Faculty Senate shall be transcribed and distributed by the Senate Secretary to all Senate members and shall also be made available to all faculty. The President's Office shall distribute the minutes to the Board of Governors.

### **II. Membership**

A. In accordance with Article V of the Constitution, the membership of Faculty Senate shall be as described in this section.

~~A. In accordance with Article V of the Constitution, the membership of Faculty Senate shall be:~~

- ~~1. one representative from each academic department;~~
- ~~2. one representative from the School of Business in lieu of a representative for an academic department;~~
- ~~3. one representative for the faculty-status librarians at Pickler Memorial Library;~~
- ~~4. ex-officio, voting: the President of the University or designee;~~
- ~~5. ex-officio, non-voting: the Provost; ex-officio, non-voting: two Student Senate representatives;~~
- ~~6. and invited guests, non-voting: the Chair of Undergraduate Council, the Chair of Graduate Council;~~
- ~~7. Dean of Students, Registrar, and Director of Interdisciplinary Studies and one department chair (representing all chairs, to be elected by department chairs).~~

~~B. Any two departments may have the option of combining for the purpose of electing a single representative to Faculty Senate. When this option is selected, the entities involved will be responsible for assuring that communication between the elected representative and the~~

~~electorate for that representative is sufficient. This combined representative will carry one vote for each department. If this option is selected, it will remain in place until the next scheduled election of representatives for Faculty Senate.~~

1. ~~B. Elections~~ Each of the academic units in the following list is entitled to one representative. Any two or more academic units in the list have the option of combining for the purpose of electing a single representative to Faculty Senate. This combined representative will carry one vote for each academic unit. If this option is selected, it will remain in place until the next scheduled election of representatives for Faculty Senate.

Accounting	Health Science
Agricultural Science	History
Art and Design	Languages
Biology	Linguistics
Business Administration	Mathematics
Chemistry	Military Science
Classics	Music
Communication	Nursing
Communication Disorders	Philosophy and Religion
Computer Science	Physics
Counseling (includes ABA)	Political Science & International Relations
Criminal Justice Studies	Psychology
Economics	Sociology and Anthropology
Education	Statistics and Data Science
English and Creative Writing	Theatre
Exercise Science	

2. An academic unit that wishes to be added to or removed from the list can submit the request to Faculty Senate for inclusion or removal through the amendment process.
3. The remainder of the membership for Faculty Senate is the following:
  - a. one representative for the faculty-status librarians at Pickler Memorial Library;
  - b. ex-officio, voting: the President of the University or designee;
  - c. ex-officio, non-voting: the Provost; ex-officio, non-voting: two Student Government representatives;
  - d. and invited guests, non-voting: Associate Provosts, Deans, Registrar, and Director of Interdisciplinary Studies.



B. Elections of representatives by the academic units enumerated above (either individually or in mutually agreed-to combination with others of the academic units) shall be held by the end of April of each year; elected representatives will take office in May. At the time of election, an alternate shall be elected for each representative. The alternate will serve in the temporary absence of the elected representative or when the elected representative is unable to serve.

C. Special elections: If the representative and the alternate are both unavailable, the department chair or equivalent will appoint a temporary representative for no more than 30 days. If the representative and the alternate are both unavailable for longer than 30 days, the representative's academic unit(s) will elect a new representative and alternate.

D. The term of office for each representative will be for two years, with staggered terms so that approximately half of the body stands for election each year. There are no term limits for representatives.

E. The term of office for Student ~~Senate~~Government representatives shall be for one year. The qualifications of the Student ~~Senate~~Government representatives and the procedures for nomination and selection of those representatives and their alternates shall be determined by Student ~~Senate~~Government.

F. Qualifications of Faculty Senate members may be largely determined by ~~departments~~ each academic unit (or combination of units) electing representatives. During the time of service, representatives should have at least an average of a one-third teaching assignment to be calculated by the ~~department~~academic unit, with the exception of faculty-status librarians at Pickler Memorial Library.

G. Faculty Senate ~~member~~members may be recalled by a two-thirds majority vote of the group that elected that member.

### III. Councils and Committees

A. Faculty Senate shall have four standing councils and committees: Graduate Council, Undergraduate Council, Budget Committee, and Personnel Policies Committee. The charge of each standing council or committee shall be approved by a simple majority of the voting membership of Faculty Senate. Faculty Senate may create additional standing councils or committees as needed.

B. Each standing council or committee shall formulate its own individual bylaws and rules of order if needed, subject to approval of a simple majority of the voting membership of their own members and of Faculty Senate.

C. Each standing council or committee shall appoint standing and/or ad hoc subcommittees as warranted by their charge.

D. Each standing council or committee shall report elections and/or membership changes to Faculty Senate at its September meeting, along with a proposed calendar for council or committee meetings for each semester.

E. Minutes and meeting calendars for standing councils and committees shall be available on the Faculty Senate website.

F. The members of each standing committee, other than Undergraduate Council and Graduate Council, will be appointed by Faculty Senate.

G. Faculty Senate will determine the appropriate number of members.

H. Ad hoc committees for Faculty Senate may be formed by the simple majority vote of the Faculty Senate.

#### **IV. Senate Officers and Executive Committee**

A. The President of Faculty Senate shall be a ~~department~~ representative elected by a majority vote, by secret ballot, of the ~~departmental~~ representatives of the new Senate in May of each year. The term of office is one year. If no candidate receives a majority vote, a runoff vote of the two candidates with the highest number of votes shall be held. The President Pro Tempore shall be similarly elected. The term of office for these positions is for one year. The term limits are four years out of any consecutive six years. The President and/or President Pro Tempore may be recalled by a two-thirds vote of the ~~departmental~~ representatives of the Senate.

B. The President shall convene and preside at regular and special meetings of the Senate. The President may call a meeting of only the faculty caucus as ~~he/she determines~~ **they determine** appropriate.

C. The President shall attend meetings of the Board of Governors and, if directed by the Senate, shall communicate faculty concerns to the Board of Governors, through channels approved by the Board.

D. The President shall be available for consultation with the faculty and shall communicate to the faculty how and when consultation may take place. The academic workload of the President shall be adjusted by the Provost commensurate with the demands and responsibilities of the office.

E. The President Pro Tempore shall assume the chair in the absence of the President.

F. The President Pro Tempore may represent the faculty and the Senate at University activities and shall assist the Senate President.

G. If the President steps down from the chair to address the Senate on the merits of a bill, the President Pro Tempore shall preside.

H. If the office of the President or President Pro Tempore should become vacant, the Senate, at its next meeting, shall elect a replacement to complete the unexpired term (as provided in this section).

Secretarial support for Faculty Senate will be provided by the Provost. The Secretary shall prepare reports at the discretion of the President and transcribe minutes of each regular and



special meeting. If the Secretary is not a member of the Senate, ~~he or she~~ **they** shall be without voice or vote.

I. The President shall appoint a parliamentarian who shall be a member of the Senate. Rules of order shall follow Sturgis' Standard Code of Parliamentary Procedures.

J. The Executive Committee of Faculty Senate shall consist of the officers of Senate, the chair of Undergraduate Council, the chair of Graduate Council, ~~the Provost, the Dean of Graduate Studies~~ **chairs of Faculty Senate standing committees, the Provost**, the president of Student **Senate Government**, and others as determined by Senate. The Executive Committee sets the agenda for Senate meetings, assigns tasks to appropriate standing councils and committees, and consults as appropriate with various committees and administrators in order to efficiently conduct Senate business.

## **V. Voting**

A. A permanent voting record shall be maintained by the Secretary. With the exception of consent items and unanimous votes, all votes shall be recorded individually.

B. The following votes are required:

1. To present an amendment to the Constitution or Bylaws to the University electorate ~~a~~ two-thirds vote of the ~~Senates~~ **Senate's** voting membership.
2. To approve any other Senate action ~~=~~ a simple majority of votes cast with the number of votes in the affirmative at least equal to two-thirds of a quorum; abstentions do not count as votes cast.

C. A quorum exists if there are representatives present who can cast a majority of all votes possible.

D. Student **Senate Government** representatives shall have the right to have Student **Senates Government's** support of or opposition to a motion recorded in the minutes of Faculty Senate.

## **VI. Enactment of Bills**

A. All recommendations shall be in the form of a bill.

B. Bills may be submitted to the Executive Committee by any Senate member prior to the meeting of Faculty Senate to be placed on the agenda for that meeting.

C. A bill may be assigned to a council, committee, or subcommittee for review before Senate action. If an assigned bill fails to receive the approval of the council, committee, or subcommittee, it will not normally come back to Senate. Senate may, however, override the decision of its council, committee, or subcommittee, and consider the bill directly.

D. A bill that Senate members determine does not fall within the purview of Senate shall be referred to an appropriate body for deliberation.

E. Bills passed by the Senate require final approval by the President of the University or by the ~~Presidents~~ President's designee. A decision not to approve shall be communicated to the Senate within ~~40~~20 days of Senate approval.

## **VII. Amendments to the Constitution and Bylaws**

A. Proposed amendments may be submitted in writing by any member of the University community eligible to vote on amendments.

B. A two-thirds vote of the Senate membership or a petition of ~~one-quarter~~ 20% of the electorate is required for presentation of an amendment to the electorate.

C. Amendments shall be distributed in written form to all eligible voters at least 10 calendar days before the election.

D. Article VII of the Constitution stipulates the required vote for passage of an amendment.

E. The President of the Senate shall certify the election results and the text of any amendment. That certification shall be forwarded to the office of the University President for the consideration and action of the Board of Governors.

F. If the Board of Governors approves the amendment, the Office of the President of the University shall distribute an amended constitution and/or bylaws to each academic unit and all administrative offices within 21 calendar days of the Board of Governors' action.

G. The structure of faculty governance should be reviewed at least every five years by Faculty Senate and appropriate amendments to the Constitution and bylaws recommended.

## **VII. Severability**

A. If any article, section, or subsection of the Constitution or Bylaws is determined not to be in compliance with Missouri statutes, the Missouri constitution or the policies of the Board of Governors, the remaining subsections, sections, and articles shall remain in full force and effect.



**Truman State University – Faculty Senate**  
A Resolution to Amend the Faculty Senate Bylaws  
November 21, 2024

WHEREAS,

- VII.G of the Faculty Senate Bylaws requires a Faculty Senate review of the structure of faculty governance every five years; and
- The recent reorganization of Academic Affairs provides an ideal opportunity to review the structure of Faculty Senate membership; and
- The revision below to the membership provisions of the Faculty Senate Bylaws has the following virtues:
  - The revision helps ensure adequate representation, in voice and vote, for each discipline. These disciplines exemplify relatively stable distinctions among fields and courses, both across academia and at Truman. Representation of the disciplines is important at a liberal arts institution because each unit brings a unique disciplinary perspective to faculty governance, which is especially beneficial in discussions of cross-campus curricular matters.
  - Through its provision to allow disciplines to share a representative between/among them (but still retain their respective votes), the revision helps secure a reduction in faculty service load without compromising the voting power of any discipline.
  - Given that it is probable that many disciplines will opt to share representatives, the proposal is likely in practice to reduce the size of Faculty Senate.
  - Organizing Senate membership according to the academic units enumerated below ensures that each faculty member has one and only one representative. The result is that the lines of communication and accountability between representatives and their represented faculty are clear.
- Various other small-scale and largely editorial edits ensure consistency within the Bylaws and with the Constitution and current practice;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Faculty Senate Bylaws be amended in the ways suggested by the following edits to the current Bylaws.

April 5, 2025

## ITEM H.5

### Amendments to Chapter 6 of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors Pertaining to Academic Affairs - Faculty

#### DESCRIPTION AND BACKGROUND

At its February 27 meeting, Faculty Senate approved a resolution to recommend that the Board of Governors update Chapter 6 of the Code of Policies regarding the composition and procedures of the Faculty Conduct Committee as it relates to the recent Academic Reorganization. Previously, the Faculty Conduct Committee had one member from each school, for a total of five members (along with five alternates). Following the reorganization's reduction in the number of schools from five to three, the suggested changes ensure an adequate number of members on the committee. From the suggested larger committee of 12 members (four from each school), a member (and alternate) from each school will be drawn (three members and three alternates in total) to oversee any particular conduct hearing.

#### RECOMMENDED ACTION

BE IT RESOLVED that Section 6.040.5.1. through 6.040.6.1. and Sections 6.040.7.1. through Section 6.040.7.14. of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors of Truman State University within Chapter 6 entitled Academic Affairs – Faculty is hereby amended as follows. Changes are shown in the text below by deleting language in ~~red, bold, and struck-through~~ and adding new language shown in *red, bold, and italics*. In all other respects, Chapter 6 remains unchanged and in effect.

- 6.040.5.1. Faculty Conduct Committee. The University Faculty Conduct Committee (“Committee”) shall be composed of tenured faculty members. It shall consist of ~~one member and one alternate~~ *four members from each School, with each member coming* from ~~a different department, departments in each School~~ elected by secret vote of the members of the tenured faculty. Department Chairs and University administrators may not serve on this committee. Committee members shall serve for a three-year term and shall not serve more than two consecutive terms. At the first meeting of the committee, it shall elect from among its members a chair and secretary. In the event that a procedure for conduct review is in process, in so far as possible, the ~~committee~~ *Review Panel* constituted during the beginning of the process should complete that case before the committee is dissolved. This will not prevent a committee for the ensuing year being selected and empaneled. The duties of the committee shall include such duties as indicated in Subsections 6.040.5.2, 6.040.6, and 6.040.7 and any other responsibilities as are assigned to it by the President of the University or the Chair of the Board of Governors.
- 6.040.5.2. Committee Rights and Duties. The Committee, *acting through Review Panels as provided herein*, is charged with reviewing whether the proposed serious discipline is warranted and making recommendations for discipline of a faculty member. The Committee’s *Review Panels* shall have the following rights and duties:
1. To determine the relevance and admissibility of any evidence offered at the meeting or hearing;
  2. To permit a stipulation of agreed facts by the University and the faculty member;



3. To permit the incorporation into the record by reference of any document, affidavit, or other exhibit produced and desired to be incorporated in the record by the University and the faculty member;
4. To question witnesses or evidence introduced by either the University or the faculty member at any time;
5. To call additional witnesses;
6. To dismiss any action or permit informal disposition at any stage of the proceeding if agreed to by the University and the faculty member;
7. To permit, at any time, amendment of the Charge or answer so as to include matters that come to the attention of the **Committee Review Panel** before final determination of the case, provided, however, that in such event, the **Committee Review Panel** shall grant to the University or the faculty member such time as the **Committee Review Panel** may determine reasonable under the circumstances to answer or explain such additional matters;
8. To dismiss any person from the hearing who interferes with or obstructs the advancement of the hearing or fails to abide by the rulings of the **Chair Presider** of the **Committee Review Panel**;
9. To have present a legal adviser to the committee, who shall be designated by the General Counsel of the University, following consultation with the **Chair of the** Committee.

- 6.040.5.3. Parties' Rights Upon a Disciplinary Meeting or Hearing. The University and the faculty member shall have the following rights:
1. To be present at the meeting or hearing, which right may be waived by failure to appear;
  2. To have present any legal or other adviser or counselor and to consult with such adviser or counselor during the hearing;
  3. To review a statement in writing of the charges against them;
  4. To present evidence by witnesses and by properly identified written statements or reports in support of the Charge or answer;
  5. To hear or examine evidence presented by the other party or the **Committee Review Panel**;
  6. To question witnesses present and testifying for the other party or the **Committee Review Panel**;
  7. To make any statement to the **committee Review Panel** in support of the Charge or answer or in mitigation or explanation of the conduct in question;
  8. To be informed in writing of the findings of the **Committee Review Panel** and its recommendation on the Charge.

The faculty member, in all cases where hearings are involved, shall have the right to request a full audio recording or written transcript of procedures (the cost of which records shall be shared equally by the faculty member and the University). The audio recording or written transcript record of the case, the charges, exhibits, hearing records, appeals, and the findings and recommendation of the **Committee Review Panel**, Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs and Provost, and President shall become the record of the case, shall be filed in the Office of the President of the University, shall be available only for official purposes, and, for the purpose of appeal, shall be accessible at reasonable times and places to the University, the Board of Governors of the University, and the faculty member.

- 6.040.6. Implementation of Serious Discipline Short of Permanent Removal and Loss of Tenure. Where a Dean seeks to impose serious disciplinary action short of permanent removal and loss of tenure, the Dean shall first meet with the faculty member and **Department** Chair to discuss the Dean's concern and the potential for discipline. If that meeting does not resolve the issue, the Dean shall provide the faculty member with written notice of the proposed disciplinary action in sufficient detail for the faculty member to address the specifics of the charges. The faculty member shall have seven (7) calendar days after receiving the notice of



proposed disciplinary action to request a meeting with *a Review Panel* of the Committee. A request to meet with ~~the Committee~~ *a Review Panel* should be made in writing to the Dean, who will forward it promptly to the Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost. If the faculty member does not request a meeting with ~~the Committee~~ *a Review Panel* within the seven calendar days, the discipline will take effect.

- 6.040.6.1. Review by the Committee. The Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost shall convene *a Review Panel* of the Committee ~~review-panel~~ within five (5) calendar days *by contacting the Chair of the Committee or, in the Chair's absence, the Secretary, who shall appoint to the Review Panel one member and one alternate from each school, where the selection is at random from among the Committee members from each School. The selection process will be witnessed by the Faculty Senate President or designee. In the event a Committee member thus selected is unable to serve or is conscious of potential bias or conflict of interest with respect to the case, the member shall decline the appointment and another member from the same School shall be selected at random.* The ~~Committee~~ *Review Panel* shall meet with the faculty member and the Dean within 15 calendar days from the date of the faculty member's request for a meeting. The Dean shall provide the ~~Committee~~ *Review Panel* with the factual basis for the proposed discipline, including any laws, policies, or regulations alleged to have been violated, as well as full explanation of why lesser or more severe discipline is not recommended. The faculty member will be provided an opportunity to respond to the allegations and to demonstrate that a lesser discipline, or no discipline, is warranted. Documentation in support of or opposition to the proposed discipline must be submitted prior to the meeting with the ~~Committee~~ *Review Panel*. During the meeting with the Dean and faculty member, ~~the~~ University's *General* Counsel and the faculty member's legal counsel may be present.

The ~~Committee~~ *Review Panel* will provide its recommendation to the Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost, Dean, and the faculty member within 14 calendar days of the meeting. The ~~Committee's~~ *Review Panel's* recommendation must be in writing and must set forth the facts on which it based its recommendation, any laws, policies, or regulations found to have been violated, along with the recommended discipline. The ~~Committee~~ *Review Panel* may recommend that the Dean's proposed discipline should be imposed, lesser discipline should be substituted, or no discipline should be imposed. The recommendation of the ~~Committee~~ *Review Panel* is not binding on the Dean but shall be given all due consideration. The Dean retains the authority to decide what discipline to impose. Within seven (7) calendar days of the ~~committee's~~ *Review Panel's* recommendation, the Dean will provide a written decision of the discipline to the faculty member and the Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost.

\* \* \*

- 6.040.7.1. Review by the Committee. In the event that the faculty member desires to contest the charges presented, the faculty member shall give written notice of this request to the person notifying the faculty member of the charge against them within ten (10) calendar days from the receipt of the charge. Failure by the faculty member to make a timely written request for the hearing shall constitute a waiver of the faculty member's right to a hearing before *a Review Panel* of the Committee.
- 6.040.7.2. Convening *a Review Panel* of the Committee. The Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost shall convene *a Review Panel* of the Committee ~~review-panel~~ within five (5) calendar days *in accord with the procedures set forth in Subsection 6.040.6.1.*



- 6.040.7.3. Materials Provided to the **Committee Review Panel**. The Dean shall provide the **Committee Review Panel** with the factual basis for the charges and proposed discipline, including any laws, policies, or regulations alleged to have been violated, as well as full explanation of why lesser discipline is not recommended. If a faculty member has been found to have violated the University's Non-Discrimination Policy, a copy of the Investigation Report, the Decision on Appeal, and all other documents considered by the Administrative Review Panel, Dean, and/or Appellate Officer shall also be provided to the **Committee Review Panel**. The faculty member shall provide a written response to the allegations and demonstrate that a lesser discipline, or no discipline, is warranted. The answer shall specifically admit or deny the allegations set forth in the charge. A failure to answer or to deny an allegation of fact in the charge may be considered by the **Committee Review Panel** as an admission of such fact. Documentation in support of or opposition to the proposed discipline must be submitted to the **Committee Review Panel** no less than five (5) calendar days before the scheduled hearing of the **Committee Review Panel**.
- 6.040.7.4. Hearing of the **Committee Review Panel**. The **Committee Review Panel** shall hold the hearing not less than 20 and not more than 30 calendar days from the date of the faculty member's request. The **Committee Review Panel** or its designee shall notify the faculty member in writing of the date, time, and place of hearing before the **Committee Review Panel**. Any request for continuance shall be made by the faculty member or the University in writing to the Chair of the Committee, and the **Committee Review Panel** shall have discretionary authority to continue the hearing for a reasonable period of time and upon a determination that the request is timely and made for good cause. The hearing shall not be open to the public, pursuant to the Open Meetings Law of the State of Missouri, if the **Committee Review Panel**, in its discretion, deems the matter to be a personnel matter appropriate for a closed hearing.
- 6.040.7.5. Conduct of the Hearing. The Chair of the Committee shall preside at the hearing *if the Chair is a member of the Review Panel; otherwise the senior member of the Review Panel in terms of academic rank and length of service shall preside.* ~~and the Chair's~~ The **Chair's** duties shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following: Call the hearing to order, call the roll of the **Committee Review Panel** in attendance, ascertain the presence or absence of the faculty member and the University or its representative, read the notice of hearing, read the charge and answer, unless the reading of the same is waived, verify the notice of the charge to the faculty member, report any continuances requested or granted, establish the presence of any adviser or legal representative of either party, call to the attention of the faculty member and the faculty member's adviser any special or extraordinary procedures to be employed during the hearing and permit the faculty member to suggest or object to procedures. The **Committee Review Panel** is not required to follow formal rules of evidence. Procedural questions that arise during the hearing but are not covered by these general rules shall be determined by the **Committee Chair** ~~Presider~~. The **Chair's** ~~Presider's~~ ruling shall be final unless a member of the **Committee Review Panel** requests consideration by the entire **Committee panel**. If so, the ruling of the **Committee panel** by a majority vote shall be final.
- 6.040.7.6. Opening Statements. The University shall make opening remarks outlining the general nature of the case. The faculty member shall also make opening remarks to the **Committee Review Panel** about the Charge, either immediately following the University's opening statement or at the conclusion of the University's presentation of the evidence, at the faculty member's election. Opening statements shall not be considered as evidence.
- 6.040.7.7. University's Evidence. The University's witnesses shall be called and identified, and evidence, written statements, or reports introduced as appropriate. The faculty member may question



the University's witnesses. The **Committee Review Panel** may question witnesses or examine evidence at the conclusion of the University's presentation or at the conclusion of each witness's testimony, as it shall so choose.

- 6.040.7.8. Faculty Member's Evidence. The faculty member's witnesses shall be called and identified and evidence, written statements, or reports introduced as appropriate. The University may question the faculty member or their witnesses. The **Committee Review Panel** may question witnesses or examine evidence at the conclusion of the faculty member's presentation or at the conclusion of each witness's testimony, as it shall so choose.
- 6.040.7.9. Rebuttal. The **Committee Review Panel** shall permit the University or the faculty member to offer evidence in rebuttal of the other's presentation.
- 6.040.7.10. Recommendation by **Committee Review Panel**. Following the hearing, the **Committee Review Panel** shall discuss its findings in closed session out of the presence of the University and faculty member. The burden of demonstrating the existence of an adequate cause for dismissal shall rest with the University and shall be satisfied by a preponderance of the evidence in the record taken as a whole. To recommend dismissal, the **Committee Review Panel** shall determine that the charge or charges warrant dismissal. If the **Committee Review Panel** concludes that adequate cause for dismissal has not been established but that some discipline or penalty less than dismissal may be appropriate, it may recommend such alternative discipline. Majority vote should determine the **Committee's Review Panel's** recommendation based on the findings. The **Committee Review Panel** shall make its findings of fact and its recommendations in writing and transmit them to the faculty member, Dean, and Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs and Provost within fourteen (14) calendar days of the hearing. The faculty member may provide a written appeal of the recommendation of the **Committee Review Panel** to the Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs and Provost within seven (7) calendar days of notification of the recommendation.
- 6.040.7.11. Recommendation by the Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost. Following receipt of the findings of fact and recommendations from the **Committee Review Panel**, the Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs and Provost shall review the recommendations of the Dean, the **Committee Review Panel**, and any appeal made by the faculty member and make a recommendation to the President within seven (7) calendar days of receiving the faculty member's appeal or no more than seven (7) calendar days after the time for appeals has expired. The recommendation of the **Committee Review Panel** is not binding but shall be given all due consideration. The faculty member and Dean will be notified in writing of the Provost's recommendation. The faculty member may provide a written appeal of the Provost's recommendation to the President within seven (7) days of notification of the recommendation.
- 6.040.7.12. Recommendation by the President. Following receipt of the recommendation of the Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs and Provost, the University President shall review all recommendations and appeals and make a recommendation to the Board of Governors within seven (7) calendar days of receiving the faculty member's appeal or no more than seven (7) calendar days after the time for appeals has expired. The faculty member, Dean, and Executive Vice President of Academic Affairs and Provost will be notified in writing of the President's recommendation. The faculty member may appeal the President's recommendation in writing within seven (7) calendar days by requesting a hearing before the Board of Governors of the University.

6.040.7.13. Hearing of the Board of Governors. In the event of an appeal to the Board of Governors, the Board of Governors shall have access to the full record of the case and the appeal documents, and the Board of Governors shall provide for a hearing for the purpose of receiving additional evidence not contained in the record of the case, or the Board of Governors shall remand the matter for further evidence to the **Committee Review Panel**. The faculty member and the University may file a written argument confined to the issues and evidence previously submitted and contained in the record of the case for consideration by the Board of Governors. Any such written arguments shall be filed no fewer than five (5) calendar days before the date scheduled for the review hearing for consideration by the Board of Governors. The Board of Governors will attempt to schedule the hearing within 30 calendar days of the recommendation of the President; however, this deadline may be extended if necessary to ensure the attendance of a majority of members.

6.040.7.14. Decision by the Board of Governors. In the event that the faculty member does not appeal to the Board of Governors and upon receipt of a recommendation from the President of the University, the Board of Governors shall review the full record of the case and prior appeal documents, if applicable. The Board of Governors will affirm or reverse the case that adequate cause for termination has been established and can decide that some discipline or penalty less than dismissal may be appropriate. The Board of Governors shall notify the faculty member and the University in writing of its decision on the case within seven (7) calendar days of the hearing. The ruling of the Board of Governors in matters of removal shall constitute the final authority under the University's administrative structure.

Moved by \_\_\_\_\_  
 Seconded by \_\_\_\_\_

	Aye	Nay
Vote: Burkemper	_____	_____
Burks	_____	_____
Christofferson	_____	_____
Dameron	_____	_____
Gingrich	_____	_____
Lovegreen	_____	_____

## ATTACHMENT

Truman State University Faculty Senate Resolution

## **Truman State University – Faculty Senate**

Resolution to recommend that the Board of Governors updates its Policies  
regarding the composition and procedures of the Faculty Conduct Committee  
February 27, 2025

### Whereas:

- Faculty Senate has a clear advisory role to the Board of Governors with respect to issues affecting the faculty and the academic community and, through channels established by the Board, may make recommendations regarding such issues;
- Policy 6.040.5.1 of the Code of Policies of the Board of Governors, as currently in effect, provides that the Faculty Conduct Committee (Committee) “shall consist of one member and one alternate [collectively Members] from the different departments in each School”;
- Policy 6.040.5.1, as currently in effect, predates the Academic Reorganization, which, effective July 1, 2024, realigned the academic departments of the University into three Schools rather than five Schools;
- The current Members of the Committee were elected prior to the Academic Reorganization, and their number and distribution at the time of their election was based upon the then-existing five Schools of the University;
- Since their election, two Members have left the University, leaving the Committee with eight Members distributed unevenly across the three Schools of the University;
- The current composition of the Committee does not equally represent the three Schools as envisioned by Policy 6.040.5.1, nor does it provide an adequate number of Members to perform the work of the Committee without the possibility of undue burden being placed upon the individual Members;
- The current distinction in Policy 6.040.5.1 between “members” and “alternates” serves no useful purpose and should be abolished, such that each School shall elect four members to the Committee and review panels of the Committee shall consist of three members, one from each School, randomly selected from among the members from each School;

### Be it resolved that:

- The Faculty Senate shall recommend to the Board of Governors, through appropriate channels, that the Policies listed below be revised to read as follows.

April 5, 2025



## Background Information and Rationale for FY2026 Enrollment Fee Proposal

Based on the increase in state funding recommended by the Governor for Fiscal Year 2026, the Council on Public Higher Education (COPHE) institutions have indicated that most plan to increase general tuition by three to five percent for 2025-26. This excludes mandatory fees and other costs. Several institutions blended online and traditional on-campus tuition rates for 2023-24, which resulted in higher overall rates at those campuses. The University of Missouri has shifted to differential tuition rates by academic program, as authorized by the legislature. This transition makes it more difficult to directly compare costs by institution.

Comparisons of total costs for 2025-26, including mandatory fees, are not available at this time. However, Table 1 outlines typical tuition and fees for a full-time undergraduate by campus for 2024-25. Truman had maintained its relative position on this list for several years but dropped lower after significant increases at Missouri State, Central, and Northwest last year after they introduced new blended traditional and online tuition rates.

## Proposed Actual Tuition Charged for 2025-26

With the 2025-26 increase of 4% applied to 2024-25 charged amounts, the increase to full-time students would be \$370 for a Missouri undergraduate. As expressed in the cost per credit hour, the proposed increase is \$15.75 per credit hour for a Missouri undergraduate student. The total increase for a student living on-campus will be \$852 for the academic year. Costs for 2025-26 for undergraduate students are outlined in Table 4. Non-resident tuition will increase by 4%, and the cost per credit hour for graduate programs will increase by 4%.

**TABLE 1**

2024-25 Comprehensive Fees  
Missouri State-Supported Four-Year Institutions  
Tuition and Fees for a Typical Full-Time Undergraduate Missouri Resident

	<u>Academic Year Costs</u>	<u>Index</u>
Missouri Western	\$ 8,402	85
Harris-Stowe	\$ 8,460	86
Lincoln	\$ 9,260	94
Missouri Southern	\$ 9,600	98
<b>Truman</b>	<b>\$ 9,838</b>	<b>100</b>
Southeast	\$ 9,903	101
Central	\$10,050	102
Missouri State	\$10,082	102
Northwest	\$13,263	135
UMKC	\$13,371	136
UM-Columbia	\$14,829	151
MoS&T	\$14,978	152
UMSL	\$15,120	154

The chart is indexed with Truman at 100 to illustrate relative costs by campus.

Source: Department of Higher Education FY2025 Comprehensive Fee Schedule

This reflects tuition costs and all required fees for a typical full-time student carrying 15 hours each semester and excludes any program or lab fees.

**TABLE 2**

Academic Year Tuition and Fees for Undergraduates

Missouri Resident	<u>2022-23</u>	<u>2023-24</u>	<u>2024-25</u>	<u>2025-26</u>	<u>2024-25 to 2025-26 % Change</u>
Unrestricted Tuition	\$8,218	\$8,620	\$8,958	\$9,326	+4.1%
Student Union Building Fee	250	290	320	330	+3.1%
Student Recreation Center Fee	222	222	222	222	+0.0%
Subtotal	\$8,690	\$9,132	\$9,500	\$9,878	+4.0%
Student Activity Fee*	90	100	100	100	+0.0%
Student Health Fee	74	78	78	78	+0.0%
Athletic Fee*	116	116	116	116	+0.0%
Information/Technology Fee*	34	34	34	34	+0.0%
Sustainability*	10	10	10	10	+0.0%
Base Subtotal	324	338	338	338	+0.0%
TOTAL	\$9,014	\$9,470	\$9,838	\$10,216	+3.8%
Non-Missouri Residents	<u>2022-23</u>	<u>2023-24</u>	<u>2024-25</u>	<u>2025-26</u>	<u>2024-25 to 2025-26 % Change</u>
Unrestricted Tuition	\$16,240	\$17,020	\$17,686	\$18,395	+4.0%
Student Union Building Fee	250	290	320	330	+3.1%
Student Recreation Center Fee	222	222	222	222	+0.0%
Base Subtotal	\$16,712	\$17,532	\$18,228	\$18,947	+3.9%
Student Activity Fee*	90	100	100	100	+0.0%
Student Health Fee	74	78	78	78	+0.0%
Athletic Fee*	116	116	116	116	+0.0%
Information/Technology Fee*	34	34	34	34	+0.0%
Sustainability*	10	10	10	10	+0.0%
Base Subtotal	324	338	338	338	+0.0%
TOTAL	\$17,036	\$17,870	\$18,566	\$19,285	+3.9%

\*Student Initiated Fee, Student Government is proposing increasing the Activity Fee and Athletic Fee

**TABLE 3****Academic Year Tuition and Fees for Graduate Students**

<u>Tier</u>	<u>Programs</u>	<u>2023-24</u>	<u>2024-25</u>	<u>2025-26</u>	<u>% Change</u>
1	Gifted MA	\$310	\$322	\$335	+4.0%
2	English MA, ABA Certificate ABA/Disability Studies MA, Leadership MA, Other	\$488	\$507	\$527	+4.0%
3	Athletic Training, Communication Disorders, Education (MAE), Music MA, Data Science Certificate, Data Science MS	\$504	\$523	\$544	+4.0%
4	Future Programs, not yet determined				
5	Accounting MAc, Counseling MA	\$541	\$562	\$584	+4.0%

These rates include all mandatory fees.

**TABLE 4**Proposed Charged Tuition Required Fees, and Residence Hall Charges

	<u>2022-23</u>	<u>2023-24</u>	<u>2024-25</u>	<u>2025-26</u>	2024-25 to 2025-26 % Change
Undergraduate Missouri Resident					
Tuition*	\$8,690	\$9,132	\$9,500	\$9,878	+4.0%
Designated Fees**	324	338	338	338	+0.0%
Residence Hall	9,935	10,701	11,128	11,610	+4.3%
TOTAL	<u>\$18,949</u>	<u>\$20,171</u>	<u>\$20,966</u>	<u>\$21,826</u>	+4.1%
Undergraduates Non-Missouri Resident					
Tuition*	\$16,712	\$17,532	\$18,228	\$18,947	+3.9%
Designated Fees	324	338	338	338	+0.0%
Residence Hall	9,935	10,701	11,128	11,610	+4.3%
TOTAL	<u>\$26,971</u>	<u>\$28,571</u>	<u>\$29,694</u>	<u>\$30,895</u>	+4.0%

\*Tuition for 2025-26 includes the Student Union Building (\$330) and Student Recreation Center (\$222) as required fees.

\*\*Designated fees include Student Activity (\$100), Student Health (\$78), Athletic Fee (\$116), Information/Technology (\$34), and Sustainability (\$10). Designated fee amounts do not include possible increases proposed by Student Government.

The cost of the Residence Hall is based on an average double room rate and standard meal plan. Rates were approved at the December 2024 Board of Governors meeting.